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11-13 avenue de Friedland

75008 Paris

France
Dear Mr Demarigny
CESR draft Technical Advice on Equivalence of Certain Third Country GAAP and on Description of Certain Third Countries’ Mechanisms of Enforcement of Financial Information
On behalf of the European Financial Reporting Advisory Group (EFRAG) I am writing to comment on the CESR draft Technical Advice on Equivalence of Certain Third Country GAAP and on Description of Certain Third Countries’ Mechanisms of Enforcement of Financial Information.  
This letter is submitted in order to assist in CESR’s processes timely.  The subject was discussed by the EFRAG Technical Experts Group but it has not been subject to the regular system of due process, ie a public consultation process.

EFRAG has decided not to comment in detail on the draft Technical Advice because it has not had sufficient time to consider CESR’s analysis of the differences between EU-adopted IFRS and the accounting requirements of Canadian, Japanese, and US standards.  Furthermore, CESR has applied a definition of equivalence that it has more experience of applying than EFRAG, which makes it difficult for us to identify, without carrying out a substantial amount of work, instances in which it has been misapplied.  We do though offer some general observations.   
1 One of the general principles underlying the activities of accounting standard-setters is that no amount of disclosure can make up for inappropriate accounting.  This principle tells standard-setters that, for example, users care whether information is provided through the primary financial statements or through note or supplementary disclosures, and users find financial statements less useful if the notes or supplementary information appears to contradict information provided in the primary financial statements.  EFRAG is unclear whether this principle has played a role in CESR’s assessment because it would appear from the draft conclusions reached that no difference in accounting appears to be so great that it cannot be rectified by additional note disclosure. 
2 We note that differences that are currently highlighted through the reconciliation required by the SEC are not required by CESR to be highlighted; there are, of course, no differences that CESR requires to be highlighted that would not appear in the reconciliation.  It follows that the equivalence test that CESR is applying is less stringent than the test that implicitly applies to US registrants.  We wonder whether this imbalance is sustainable in the longer-term.
3 We think it is interesting to speculate whether the conclusions reached in the paper would still have been reached had the comparison been between the accounting practices adopted in the various countries rather than the accounting standards.  There are several reasons why we make this comment:
· We understand that, on issues where the standards do not prescribe exactly what accounting practices to use, the practices adopted in some of the third-party countries are very different from those adopted in Europe. 

· We note that, although CESR is trying to assess the equivalence of various third-party GAAPs, the assessments in the paper seem to be based on the requirements of the various accounting standards and not on the other material that makes up GAAP in some of the jurisdictions involved.  

· Small differences in the wording of standards can result in some very significant differences in the accounting numbers.

· The diligent application of standards and the consistent enforcement of standards are essential if a comparison of different sets standards is to be of any practical value.  

In this context we wonder whether there might, for example, be some benefit in comparing the conclusions reached about US GAAP with the US GAAP reconciliations that European entities are currently preparing to ensure that nothing of significance has been missed.

4 We note that there are differences between the tentative conclusions reached in the draft technical advice and the agenda decisions taken in the IASB/FASB convergence project.  For example, when CESR’s definition of equivalence is applied to the differences that exist between the income tax standards of the IASB and FASB, it results in those differences being deemed insignificant.  The IASB and FASB have, on the other hand, decided that the differences are sufficient to justify a high priority convergence project to eliminate them.  If it has not already been done, we think CESR should compare its tentative conclusions with the convergence agenda decisions of the IASB and FASB to satisfy itself that the conclusions it has reached that are different from the IASB/FASB conclusions can be justified. 
5 We note that in the paper CESR states that its assessment “did not deal with specific industry segments”.  If CESR has not assessed the equivalence of industry specific accounting standards, it follows presumably that the overall conclusion of this draft technical advice—that, with some additional disclosures, the standards of Canada, Japan and the USA are equivalent (as defined) to those used in Europe—does not apply to any sector that is subject to such standards.  We suspect that this limits the usefulness of the exercise.  

6 The description in paragraph 25 of the three types of remedy are rather short, making it difficult, when considering exactly what the remedies will entail in any particular case, to differentiate between Disclosure A and Disclosure B.  Furthermore, the analysis and assessments in the tables on pages 26-73 are so short that it can sometimes be difficult to understand the choice of Disclosure remedy proposed.  For example:

· if the differences in the standards are such that very different impairment provisions are recognised, it would seem logical to propose that a Disclosure C remedy so that the difference is quantified.  Yet the proposal is that a Disclosure A remedy should be required.  In this instance it is not clear whether that remedy would result in the difference being quantified and, if it would not, why non-quantification is considered a satisfactory remedy.
· the draft paper explains that the US standard on provisions differs from IAS 36 and, as a result, provisions are required to be recognised at a different stage and at a different amount.  The paper nevertheless concludes that the standards are equivalent.  In particular it argues that the different recognition points issue is not a problem as long as “the element of the liability that is less than likely is disclosed”—we find this a bit confusing because we would have thought that what needs to be disclosed is the element of the liability that is less than ‘likely’, but more than ‘more likely than not’.  The paper also dismisses the differences in the treatment of exit and disposal plans by arguing that “disclosure should help investors make similar decisions” without being specific as to which disclosure would achieve that and whether the provision of that disclosure is currently required. 
This sort of thing makes it very difficult for us to evaluate the detailed conclusions reached in the draft paper.

We hope that you find the above comments helpful.  If you wish to discuss them further, please do not hesitate to contact Paul Ebling or myself.

Yours sincerely

Stig Enevoldsen
EFRAG, Chairman
